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are men who have held very remarkable views with respect to religion and who have
always boen doclared to be insano o antil thoy gathere] toguits (et

1 think that cases of that kind could be pro-
would depend very much upon the mental condition of & man whether he
ble? If it could be shown that he was clearly insane, he is clearly irrespon-
sible on that point. That would be my own view.

Q. So that if it can be clearly shown that he was Inboring under a delusion, that
from G

ely inspired, dircctly iod, you think he would not be resposible for
—A. Responsible for what 1 g

his actions

Q. Responsible for |.w4 ctions in connection with the delusion of course—A.
What actions would they be ? Such actions as what

sht do for the purpose of carrying out his insane delusion ¢

nstance, That was exactly Mahomet’s belief ; he believed
and few believed of his own people that he was divinely inspired, but he
acted on his belief and he carried his whole belief with him. He believed and he carried
it out at the point of the sword and with the whole world, and he convinced the people
of what, if ho had faled, would have beon simplr rogarded e delosion it s oe mid

Q. o that you think tho conduct of Mr. Riel prfectly compatible with thecanduct
fox irfance of s ke Mahooieh o k2 1 like Smith or a man like

T4 ferstaoe tham, M. Risls yiews 1 (At (Eoie
i you will llow a6 %o say ih e i w4 AU
own personal knowledge, that he is a man of great
dopth, and thut he might choose, knowing the great influence
these people who have n much inferior education to his own,
ded him in the light almost of a saviour. have thought that he might
have assumed for the purpose of main his influence with them, more than he
really believed.

e exercised ov

at is your impression, Doctor >

Q. The A. Thave thought that it might be so. I don’t
think it is, for | h \]mek on the s e never heard him
speak on that subject, and T gather ¢ ledge only from a general knowledge of
what lus taken place, and from ])n-hnu.tl knowledge which I acquired in speaking with
Mr. Riel, but never on that subjec

© never heard

that Knovledgo is sl bussd upon g very fmperfect hearing of the
evidence — his xidencs to da it'is not based I had a very imperfect hearing
e tiectoa iy T synu\knwuul\ of the general judgement I formed in my own
hind, entirely apart from the evidence as given in this room : that is whit T speak of.

Q And u( cour
On

Q. That is entirely outside of what you have heard here?—A. Yes, not, let me
observe, contrary o what T have heard, though it may be contrary to what [ have not
heard.

o that, now, Doctor, you are perfectly aware, are pe not, that insane men have
exhibited very great shrewdness in some respects ?—A. Yes
Q. Now, aro you in o position o sy, Doctor, on your oath that this man here is not
insane Tam in a position to say that after a very considerable amount of conversa-
T daily communication with him, T have never spoker, to him on a single
subject on which he has spoken irrationally.
Q. Aud you have never spoken to him on the particular suh]ecm with reference to
which o is supposed to have his delusions ?—A. Name the su
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. ligion, and on_his mission with reference to the North-West Teritories ?—
BT s tver spaien 6 him on sither,

Q. Mr. Oster.—We may, Your Honor, b bletosbartan our evidence in rply, 56
would be convenient to adjourn now (Fiv t is impossible to close the
night, and it would be n matter of convenience if your Honor would ajourn now.
Mr. Lemieus. We agree if your Honor consents to it. We don't want to be
responsible.
Court here adjonrned till 10 A. M.

Regina, Friday and Saturday, July the 31st. and August Ist. 1885,

‘Caprary Howses Youse, (recalled) examined by Mr. Robinson

Q. We have heard from you as to the par
“go over that again. The prisoner was in your ch

u took in this rebellion and r nrcd not
e for a certain time ?

Q. When was he given in
Q. By whom >—A. By M

your charge ?—A. On the eve

ing of the 15th ma

njor-Ganeral Middleton, commanding the forces.

. 1 was res-
ived instruction to

Q. What were your i s T what were you to do with him
ponsible for the prisoner to hold him. - On sunday afcer
leave with him for Regina.

A He was
when I received
¥ minutes.

31ton sunday afternoon that e was given nto your chargo
given mw my char, v and remained in my charge il sus
B T maiy ot o and i

Q. When did you deliver him out of your charge >—A. I delivered him here on the
23rd of Ma,

e o e st cane cner your charge till the 23rd of May, he was
constantly in your charge >—A. Yes.

Q. Day and night >—.

. Yes.

Q Had you much conversation with him About hin nd l]lh-n\ulm\‘ and
the part he took in the rebellion. We conversed almost constantly and very fre

Q Upon what subject ?—4. Wo conersed on almost every subject connected with
the rebellion
Well then, will o tell s what you think material and of importance in his
conversation regardi rebellion, and his own conduct and the part he took in it ?—
A. During the term of mwm or nine days that T was living with b
an immense amount of conversatio ave o notes to. halp me in spealking and my
remarks may be a good deal ramblin

Q- Well, tell us >—A. He did not speak in reference to Fish Creek, he spoke in
reference to Duck Lake,as [ said the other da;

Q Did he speak in reference to his ;:em-r‘nl view and the con dm of the campaign?
forence o his general view, as to the cond in, he expressed
himself in this way, that i was 1ot 80 foolish as to imagine that he coold wage war
#gninst Canada and Great Britain.  But he hoped by the first success to compel the Ca-
nadian Government. mcunwlﬂ the situation or accede to his demands {e placed
in this way, he hoped to surround and eapture Major Crozier’s forces and with them as
host;ges to compul the Canadian Government to consider the situation, but they failed
in

t 0

Q. Did he say how he failed to capture Crozier >—A. A battle occurred and the
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police retired ; he was attempting as I said to surround the police force, but thofight com-
o et olios retirs o spok i eclacils B attacking the column advancing
from Qu'Appelle o the front. Hesaid hedid not imagine he could fight the ariny i the fielg
and che reason b did not adopt guerilla warfare, was that he hoped by remining quiet
to induce th send a small force or to come ahead with a small force hiniself,
654 he hoped 0 cupture Shat muall focws ok ith them as hostages to compel the Cana-
dian Government to consider the utm\lum They failed in that. And then he made
the atemp to Northoote Hid intention betng what R e captured

those on board to hold them as hostages to compel the Canadian Government to consider
the situation. Ho said he did not severs commanication with the East by telograph becauss
he hoped to use the telegraph when he captured the hostages,

Q- Those were the general views he expressed as to the situation and the system on
which he_intended to can b campaign and hoped of success ? Did b talk ubout

\ I noticed that when the conversation was reaching a point. that
eat ance and if he \\nl\cd for time to answer or to evade the point.
of the (mnclﬂ\!lﬂll he‘ immediately turned on religious matters,

Q. He seemed to use his views on relj
regarded it.

sious matters in that way ~—A. I so

he express any special views about religion when he did turn the conversation ?
had a conversation on the subject of the days of the week and the subject of
ed church.

Q. Tell us any views he expresed on those eubjects-—A. s

that God’s mer ¥ person :qung the short time he

had to live; he said there was a period of P abmant snd aee 0k person would be

In reference to the reformed Church and. the days of tho week, he said that

Jhureh emerged from paganism it brought some of the remains of

nd he 1n~A.uno(I the days of the week. He wished to purify Religion
1 the North West, west of those parts.

iews as to hell was

when the
paganism with it
5 o e e

A. He especially mentioned about. the infallibility of the
o any otherdogma o the Church except that ho desired
that the government of ¢ ted in Canada ; once or twice the conver-
sation went back to the days o S ,wk. reference to Archhishop Taché
2 & Fricad who had been very guod 1o him and ko G mot wish te fo st R
rehbishop Taché, or Bishop Bourget of Montreal, because he

were personal friends, but he felt that he was right and even personal
friendship would have to give wa

Q.
Pope. I do not ¢

="_

Are there any other general topics on which you conferred with him and on
which he gave y formation 1A Ho talked about tho Indians n diflrent parts
of the countr from the United States, about the battle of Batoche

S04 sevsend Tasidontn that oosurred there, Fla spoke svouti0 el o G5k S
aring the trip in waggons from Saskatoon {0 Moose Jaw e talked on almost every
circumstance and subject, One day when we camped at g in moving around the cam;

sround {o place sntries Tsaw some Indians sig estroyed. 1 called his atten-
fon to thom aad he said i6 was possibls they might have. Teem Tolk e by Rt
Tudians going from the Cypress Hills to help him at Batoche.

Q. Is there anything else that occurs to you, of course you cannot relate all the con-
versation, was there any uu\»r xuhjeut upon which you had conversation that yo
recollect —A. When we found the books and papers in the council room we found the-
B Reoredatls T o stos o great deal, T could not translate it at all and one
of the first things that, T asked the prisoner was what the meaning of thatwas, he wrote
the meaning of the word in my note book, he wrote also the meaning of his mission in
the note book.

Q. Do you remember what it was—A. He said that every one had a mission, and
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that his mission vas to accomplish practieal resulis. The meaning of the wvord
“ Exovede,” was he said from two latin words,ez “from,” ovile “the flock.” That the coun-
cillors were members of the flock. He himself pmmml not to be from exovede, that
there was an exovede outside of him with the p
Q. Does suthing ol oceur 0 you, Ldon't wi hj,au to give all the conversation ; if
you tell us s importaut and material, that will be satisfactory to me That
is all I can nm.k that will have any bearing on the case, there was agreat deal of con-
versation.
. From first to last of these conversations with you, did you observe anything ta
suspicion or indicate that he was of unsound mind —A. None at all, certmnl!
Bk, T found that T had » mind against my own and fully equal to it, better educated
and much more clever than I was myself. He would stop and evade answering questions
witll the best possible advantage.
Q. The idea of mental aberration, unsoundness of m
T believe it was for a purpose, what has been given as

nd, never

cason for insan

rred to you —A.

Q Did he profess to you to have the Sp
No, never to me.

of God or the power of prophecy —A.

By Mr GREBNSHIELDS.

Q. What experience have you had in dealing with people of unsound mind 1—A.
None at all.

are only speaking now from

Q You ions you had with the prisoner?
B iy o the i daya T lived with hm,

Q. You never had a medical education in that respect?—A. No

% yoursltin s posiion to give an apinion us to sanit
al opinion, but T consider that during the nine days T w
B ki ko if [ was fiving with

living

three or four months to find

Q. Did you hear Doctor Clark state that it would tak
out whether & person was insane, in many cases A I did

Q. Do you think you are as clever as these \lmboxs who have stated that +—A, T
think, living with him as I did, it would be different.

Q. Did_you hear the doctor say it would require constant conversation with the
person to discover Not constant, such intercourse as the superintendent of an
asylum would have.

Q. Have you got that little book he wrote in?—A. The Counsel for the Crown
have it. .

Q. You state that he told you his mission was to produce. practical results?—A
Yes, the exact words are in the little note book.

Q. You gave him the book and asked him to write in it -—A. He asked for my
ook £o write in if, so that it would be correct and that there would be no misunderstand-
ing about it after.

Did he tll you what. the practcal resuts of bis mission was to bot
spoke frequently of the annihilation of the Maétis by the Hudson p:
U et b A i
suceeed, he evaded me.

s that he

i i ke expiain o you7— A His expla
wanted to save the people of the North West from annihilation.

Q. That was the practical result of his mission as you mnhuwl in conversation with
him ?—A. He evaded me, he would not come down to particu
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Q. Did he tell you anything as to d
ities >—A. No, the first I heard of that was

« the Territories among different national-
the court room.

ou state chat e said i was ot folish nough o imagine thathecould wage
war against England and € A Ta ow he expeeted with 700 o 800
men to wage war against three m

lions of pmple.

Q. You included England >—A. Yes, being the governing country (note book h
owitness who roads) «Thave  miseon, o o s everybody' for me T understand my misian
in this way : to bring about practical

Q. 1 understand there is mmrn-mg in your book in reference to the word ‘exovide”?
Tt is lengthy.

ter, lot us have it?—A. It is as follows: “ecomels! from Lok
word savede, *flock,” from two Latin words, ez,  hich means, < from,” and oeile
“flock.” That word T made use of to convey tha ing. o sthorts &
A1 A the adyiers o Ve maovamen took i Uittt tasten d of Sl ot
sentatives ; and there purpose in doing so was exactly the same as mine, no assumption of
authority.  We consider ourselves a part of society and near us and other parts of the
samo society attompted to rule over us imprope
through bad b of public afin ¥
were obtaining the the_ (m\vnunent the
"The sitastion was louding to_ aunihilation out assuming any
v than that which exists by itself in ‘tho oondition of cur Bakim, e fu LR
eservation and those who agreed to act together in the protection of thei
tened in so many different ways, took the names of exovede, so that having
r the e being and to e known by the men of the movement
is ver, the reaction would be as light as possible for the reason
that, what would have been undertaken and ..m..\plnh.-d under the sound authority of
n good ones, and consequently the move-
u e th lwmuly to some things which were previously
Hoing 0 fur 1a tho waves, Bévaesl timen 1n made use of the words represen-
tatives, members of the council but we had to do it until the word ezovede was under-
stood and unil it would begin to bocome ustal among the men of the movement, o
the council tself is not and being composed of  exovedes,” we have called it
“Exovedate.

sar MippLErox, recalled, examined by Mr. Robinson.

Q. General Middleton, you have heen examined already in this case, on what date
did you see Riel come into your custody —A. on the 15th of May, T thinl

Q. And how long was it before he left your camp?—A. On the morning of the 19¢h.

u almost four days?—A. Yes, three or four days.

And duri

Q ch consersation with b 1A, No not much.
1 had moro cons di

y other, for T had him for the
my tenc, until T p.—e,.md another
m on that day than any other.

e day, in fact nearly
place for lum so that I really talked more with
Q. That was immediately after his capture t—A. Yes.
Q on giva us aay goneral iden what your subjocts of converation with him
= e e s par plans —A. Well, T did not
ask him much about them. I el qnsﬂum\s similar to what
Captain Young has told you. [ remember asking  him why he confined himself to cutting
the telegraph wire only between Frog Lake or between that station and Prince Albert,
why ke confined himaclt to only Temoving thet snd o emowig tho il x4 o
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around me, and as near as | can remember, his answer was that he only wanted to-
cut off the police from Prince Albert and that he thought he might deprive them
of being able to communicate with the rest of Canada, and that he would probably want:
0 use it himself. And then T asked him how he came to think he would be able to wage

inst Canada with England at its back, because, I said, England would of course
Jave come £ the front st Canada eng besten that it would have been impossible for

o hope 0 tuccsed againat Canada, and he gave me very much a similar answer, that
e i it expect €0 bo able to beat them, but he thought that by dint of showing & good
bold front @luk lxe \Aoul(l probably get better (r ms fror he (vo\ mnmtn( and he seemed
to have an indet idea, a sort of i of ta he could lay hold
B i Lo il Crocies and b e he hoped to. fabeliih
prisoner, and that he would then have got better terms.

Q Taking hostages in point of fuct 1. Yes, hostages, that was che general view
I think, by means of which he would obtain better tern

t that you remember ---A. No,

s thore anything el he said to you on the sub
% ik reully recsombor anyth e,
Q. Did he speak to you on rel\;,m\h subjects I—A. Yes.
Q. What were his views ! —
He told me some of his views.

He often turned the conversation to religious subjects.
Thad nothing to say against. 1 used to
listen to what he had to say. ome was all wrong and corrupt, aud that the
priests were narrow-minded ered. 100 much: with the poople, sad othas 6
his ideas were excessively good, he told me he thougl e rligion should bo based on
worality and humanity and charity. He talked in that se style.

1 to you I—A. No.

Q. You cannot remember anything else just now that he sa
o indicate

During all y
any suspicion of i tieus of

tercourse with him, dul you see anything whatev
ind in him

camnot say 1 did, on the con-

occur to you there was any
A No, I should say on the contrary
He d quite able to hold his own upon

hnppenetl (RS upon,

argument or topic we

Q. That idea never occurred to you A, OF ourse 1 had heard con
about reports o heard for instance one or twa of the p

S soouts, Ha an,
fool.” He told me that h as doing at Batoche.” So that I real
came to the conclusion he was very far from being mad or a fool

atly before
ed

ember, told m

conclusion,

Q. That was your conclusion Q. Yes, that was
Examined by Mr GREENSHIELDS.

Did that man say what Riel was doing at Batoche !—A. Nothing, he simply
said Rlll was a fool and shmmrell his shoulders.

0 s letters addvemed o you by Ril were signed by bim « Ecorede
Delieve they w don't think they were, you have them there

Q. Of course you never had seen Riel previous to his surrender on the
A Never.
Cranves Brece Prrsiapo sworn, examined by Mr. Osten.

Q. You live in Winnipeg and are a clergyman?—A. Yes.

% Were you on the boat when the prisoner was brought down the Saskatehewan
as on the Northeote with Riel

/
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Q. From what date and for how long-—A. We were on the boat monday, tuesday
and part of the wednesday,

Q. Were you in his company otherwise—A. T accompanied him to Regina.

Q days were jou on the way altogether1—A. Five days. We came here
on mtnr(l.w ot bt el) om ok iy

Q H

you any conversation with him I Several conversations with him.

subjects A&, Wellon various suljets, on the rballion, s T asl it
e e we spoke of various other subjec

Q Onw
also on his re

9. Did be give you his plans bis schemes, what ho hoped to g by the Fml
A. Yes, his general “scheme was this : he hoped to induce the Government to make &
treaty with hm\ or with the Half-l lm 1s of lh\. North-West similar to the treaty they had
made with the Half-breeds of Manitoba. That was what he stated to be his chief objeet.

ccomplish that with his force?—A. He told me first of

How did he hope to
entation of his grievances to the Government.

having sent his bill of rights or repr

Q. How did o hope with his organisation to get what he wanted ?—A. Tt would be
necessary for me to tell just how the matter progre

Q. No, wo only want what is material he hoped to get: the police in his
power, 5o that whilst they were held, | suppose as hostages, he said simply while he
Beld them, that ho might negotiate with the Government while they wero in his powee.

Q. Then did he say how that failed ?—A. He explained how that failed at Duck
Lake,

Q. Did he tell you what his object was at Duck Lake?—A. His object was to get
hold of the police, so that while they were in his power he might negotiate with the
Government.

=]

his next plan —A. To meet General Middleton's
forces at Fish C ed reverses of which he was pretty confident they
would, that he would then send word to the Tndians and while the troops in the country
¢ with the Indians, who he felt confident would rise, that then he would be able
ate with the Government. That is substantially the plan as it impressed itself

ng that, what w:

ek and if they suf

Q. The second I»L.m cet him at Fish Creek and then raise the Indians and
whilst the countey was the Indians, to carry on negnmumus with the Govern-
Thent 1—A. Thas s aubstantiaily what T understood it 0 b

s to

Q. Failing that, what did he expect to do 1—A. Well, if that failed, and of course it
did fail, he still hoped to meet General Middleton at Batoche and he would be able to
Told him at bay long enough to negotiate with the Government.
Q. These were his three dife His three different steps.
Q All ending with the one object 1—A. Yes, to get a treaty with the Government.
Now you had a conversation with him, how frequently #—A. T had them often
and dunmv T whle of that timo. T could not tell the murmber, wa often spoke together.

steps !

Exami

ed by Mr. GREENSHIELDS.
Q. How long did you say you had been with him on the boat altogether !—A. From
mondey to satarday, from. tho time they started from Guardupuy crossing till we.
came to Regina,

Q. You never had seen or met Mr. Riel before that time 1—A. Never.

10
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Captain Ricmarp DEaxE, sworn, examined by Mr. Burbina.
Q. You belong to the North West mounted police —A. Yes,
Q. Has the prijm\er been in your charge —A. Yes, since the 23rd of may last.

Q. H had oceasion to visit him frequently I—A. Yes, I have seen a good

Sl e ey

Q. Since that time up o the present ! —A. Yes.

Q. You have conversed with him 1—A. Yes.

Chiefly subjects affecting prison discipline and
Al requisitions must be made to me.

9 Pmmxpnlly on what subjects
as to his diet and concessions as to liberty.

Q. Have you been always able to grant them to him 1—A. Well, not always.

Q. When refused did he show any ecitement or irritabilily 1—A. No, his manner
was most, polite and suave and he never altored his manner in the least,

Q. From the observation you had of him, have you scen anything to indicate he is
B et i 1—h. Nothing whate:

Q. Anyéhing to indicate the contrary 1—A. Yes, T think so, he always gave we the
impression of being very shrewd.

Joseeu Picorr, Sworn, examined by Mr. Burbidge.
Q. You are a member of the North West mounted police I—A. Yes.
Q. What is your position 1—A. Corporal.
Q. You have had charge of the prisoner 1—A. Yes.
Q. Since when 1—A. 22nd of may.
Q. Have you been his keeper !—A. T have.
Q. Did you see him daily 2—A. Many times a day.
Q. Have you conversed with him ?—A. T did not converse with him.
Q. You have had frequent opportunity of observing him ?—A. Yes.

9. Havo you seen anything i his conduct to show ho i not of sound mind ?—A.
No Sir, T Llwnys considered him of sound mind.

Q. You have heard him speak ?—A. nmu, Sir.

Q. And he spoke with good reason 2—A. With reason and politeness.
Mr. Oser. That s the close of the evidence in reply.

Mr. Frrzeatrick follows, and after him the prisoner.
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THE PRISONER'S ADDRESS.

casy for me today to play
stances are such as to excite any man and under the
s taking place to-day (I cannot speak English very well, but
w0t of those here'speak English). Under the excitement.
trial causos mo would justify me not o appear as usual, but with my mind ous
nary condition. I hope, with the help of God, I will mumtain calmness and
decorum as suits the Hmmnllur- Court, this Honorable Jur) You have seen by the
papers in the hands of th s that Tam 1 v inclined fo think of God at the begin-
ing of my actions. 1 wish, 1 do it, you won't take it as a mark of insanity, that you
wow't take it as part of a play of insunity. Oh my God ! help me through thy grace and
zln' divine influence of C t. Oh m\(;m] ! bless me, bless this lmumuble Court, bless

Your Honors Sentlomen of the Jury : It would b

: iy e Ty e wyers who have come 700 leagues to try to savemy
np, bless also the laywers for the Crown, Tosmtso they hve dand, aiaitss S RAONNY
thought their duty. ~ They have shown me fairness which at first T did not expect from
my bml ! bless all those who are around me through the grace and influence
us Christ Ou our, change the curiosity of those who are paying attention to
me, change that cur o sympathy with me. The day of my birth | was helpless and
15 Motk took eere of ao abasugh sl waa mck able o/de s Hhech ks i o1 8
10 help her o take careof me and I lived. To-day, although a man, Tam as helpless before
this Court, in the Dominion of Canada snd in this world as I was helpless on. the knees.
rth. The West is also my mother, it is my mother
ey i sick aad conined in o ertain way, thare aeo
e of me during her sickness,
mothe countey il ot Il sam sore thaem s i AR
into the world, because a mother is_always » mother, and even
faults, if she can seo T am true, she will bo full of love for me. When I
came North West in July, tho first of July 1884, I found the Indians suffring,
Ltound the Half breeds eats ¢ the rotten pork of the Hudson Bay Company,and getting
S Although a Half-breed and having no pretention to help the
whites, Ialso paid Caton'ts the, I sa they were deprived of responsible Government.
Tsaw that they were deprived of their pubic liberties, T remembered that Half-breed meant
white and Indian and while T paid atsention to the suffering Tndiansand the Half-breeds,
et et t part of my heart and blood was white, and 1 have directed
10y attention o help the Indians, to help the Half-breeds and to help the whites to the
best of my ability.  We have made potitions, T have made_petitions with_others to the
Cuoadian ent, asking to relieve the condition of this country. We have taken
time, we have ‘riod o anite ol elasses sven if T may a0 spesk all parkie: e i Mot
nunination with me know 1 have suffored, that 1 have waited months to
Bring some of the peopl of the Saskaichean to sn understanding of certain important
ints i s to the » Government and I have done my duty. It has
been said in this hn\ et Dt spiatls e I egotistic. A man cannot
g 2

years ago, when I cam

3 T hav

he may be general. I have done all T g nmke gnod petitions with others az

have sent them to the Canadian Government, and when the Canadian i

answer through the under-sc of State to the seretary of the joint_committee of

the Saskatchewan, then I begun to speak of myset, not before. S my pacticnlar ferest
passed after the public interest. A good deal has heen said about the settlement and

v iion of Tande & ood doa T boey sai] Abouts Ehats T o mob Suiletsay sl s
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day here would allow me to mention the foreign policy, hut if T was to explain to you or
m had been allowed to make the questions to witnesses, those questions would have
ared in an altogether different light before the Court and Jury. 1 do not say that
35 lueyers did ot ot tho right quessions.  Tho obearvations 1 had the honor t0 raake
t the Court the day before yesterday were good ; they were absent of the situation, they
did not know all the small circumstances as I did. I could mention a point, but it point
was leading to so many, that T could not have been all the time suggesting by it. I don't
wish it understood that I do not appreciate the good work of m e ok T
to go into all the details of what has taken place, T think I could safely show you that
what Capt. Young said, that T am aiming all the time at practical resulis, are trae aud 1
could have proved it... Duri cal results. 1 have
and after my death T il hetng gesctical rosults Tho lenrnad iy
for the Crown have produced all the ]uln-naulwnh\)]m g that, was under their lum(l& 1
thank them for not having brought out those papers which are so partic:
t they were, they should not )n\r looked at th
All my papers were taken
lishing, after my death.
lﬂ mnuml did
He'd

g

o bo published, it zl.e,- were w
the prisoners, to y bool
scknowledged my onder, that is why
and | sen not sory. L sey T thanik tho learmcd lawy
50 many things, and if by the Almizhty power of God T o froe from this tria
such confidence in British fairness that ol
originals and if copies are wanted I will 1.4 willing to
the North-West was not suffering lust year, particula
parts of the North-West [ So much, but what I I
which 1 have exposed myself rested certainly on the convic
apon to do something for uy country.

Tt is true T helieved for years I had a mission and wh
B9 Sideretact mae act as trying to play the role o msne
have a verdict of Mqunm\ upon that ground.

1 believed that I had a n on, | believe t
What encourages me m speak to you wit confidence inall the cti
english way of spenking, it is that T have yot and still that mission, and with the helpof

od, who i inthis box with me and h is on tho side of my law yers, e with the honorable
Court, the Crown and the Jury, to help me and to prove by the extraordinary help that
hero is a Providence today in my trial s there was A Providenes in the batdes of the
Saskatchewan.

I have not assumed to myself that T had a mission. T was working in Manitoba first

and T did all T could to get free inatitutionsfor Manitoba. Thoy have those institutions to-
y in Manitoba and they try to improve them, while myself who obtained them, I am for
tten as if 1 was dead. “But after | had obtained “nl\ (I.: help of othersa constitution
or Maitaba, when the government at Ottawa was not viling to_ insugurate it ut the
proper time, ] have worked till the inauguration should take p]; ce and that is why T have
boen banished for five years.  had to res five vears. 1 was anwilling to o t. T protested.
Tsaid : Oh my God ! T offer you all my existence fo that cause and plesss to make of my
an instrament to help men in ntry seeing my intentions, the late
Archbishop Bourget said * Riel has no narrow views, he is a man to accomplish great
things ” and he wrote that letter of which I hope that the Crown has at least a copy. And
in another letter when I became what Drs. believed to e, insune, Bishop Bourget wrote
guin and sid * Yo befbiowsed by God and man and take pationce in your evil>  Am I
not taking patience? Will I be blessed by man as I have been L God?

T say that, I have been blessed by God and I hope that you will not take that as a
prosumptuous assertion. 1t has boon a great success for me 0 come through all the dan-
gor I ive in that 15 yeurs. 17 1 have not succceded in wearing a fine cont myslf 1

wve at the same time the great consolation of sceing that God has maintained my views ;
that he has maintained my health sufficiently to go through the world and that he has

papers will |

Aot sa;

ury o as to

~b T o mimon. ab

is very moment.
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kept me from Bullets when bullots n.,.md my hat. T am blessed by Ged. Tt is this trial
that is oing to show that I am going to be blessed by man (l\lrmg my existence, the
hen«hrnom aro n guaranteo that. I was not wronged when oy cligusmstatge’ il S
from wy adopted Iand to my native land. When T soe British people sitting in the
» remembering tha the English pople are proud of that word & Fie play,”
e blessed by God and by man also. Not only Bishop Bourzet
bt F.\umum...
of conscienc el, God has put an object into your hands
i o the teiunph of eligion fn tha world, take cae, you ill sdcest FHRRRNS
believe "1 have got those words in my head, those words of J.-B. Branoand
the late .\uh‘u\lu\p Bourget.
But Is (\Mr, while T was yet in Montana, while T was passing before the catholic
st, the Revd. Father Frederick Ebeville, curate of the church of the
m,mn Gonceptian at Beaton, aid o me *Tam glad tosse o, taycur s Ol
T said yes ; hesaid “Go and bring them to the altar, I want to bless you before you go
away " and with Gabriel Damoatacdny famsily we al rent oncu kaehe at e S Al
priest put on his surplice and he took holy waterand was going to bless us. T said will you
allow m to pronounce u prayer whils you bless mo : he said yes, I want to know what it
is. 1 told him the pray ¥ father bless me, according to the
iden Land without measure,” He mid i fass S i

spea il
'hi l‘ are |n‘»\\mf
o T bless you” Well he blessed me. 1 prononced that
Irh«nvml for Gabriel Dumont. When the glorious general Middleton
1 on our families and when shells went and bullets went.
summer, when I saw my children, my wife, my-
ping, T said that nothing but. the mmmg mn.m
measure of Father Frederick Ebeville could save me, and that can save me to-day fro
these ined 10 mo surrounded m all the et f s g
chewan and since, it seems to me that I have seen it. Capt Deane, corporal Prickart and
the corporals of the guard who have heen appointed over me have been so gentle while
the papers were mging against me show that nothing but the benediction of God could
give e the favours I have had, in remaining so respected among these mes
To-day, when Laaw the glrious General Middleton Loaring tstimony that e though
I was not insane, and Captain Young prove that I t insone, 1 felt that God w
Dlessing me and blottin, upon my xcp\llntmn on
accannt of having been in the lunatic asylum of d friend Dr Ro, um-um.
in an asylum, but T thank ﬂn» Iayes for-tlb Goutey i destroyed the testimony of
nd Dr Roy, because I have always believed that [ was put in the uvlum\\thont
reason, to-day my pretention is
also been in the lunatic asylum wonder that my
achapelle who took care (.f e charitably, and D Flpweth reou
perhaps under my own nam
Bvemit 1 was going o be sentenced by you, Gentlemen of the Jury, I have ths eatis
faction that I die, I will not be reputed by all men as insane, as a lunatic.
good deal has been said by the two Revd Fathers André and Fourmond. T cannot call
them my friends, but they made no false testimony, I know thata long time ago they
lieved me more or less insane. Father Fourmond said that T would pass from a grea pas-
sion {ogrea calimnes,tha shows groat control under coutradiction and according to my
opinion and with th of God, 1 have that control.
Mr Charles \olm“h n he went into the box dnl not say that he was sworn with me in
all xlm ML\II& that I did far from taking them as insane affuirs ; he was in them under the
of with four of us, ho did not say that in the box. My word is perhaps not
testimony hut if he was asked in the hox to sy if there was an oath taken, he could not
deny it and he would have o name the four men and would have to name himsel
When he spenks of resigning u contract in my favor, T did not ask it, the Govern-
ment would not give it tome, besides he was engaged in a movement against the Govern-
ment, and to take a contract from the Government was certainly a weakness upon his part,

arges. The benediction pros

T was there,
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and T told him not to compromise his cause, and T told him to withdraw instead of going
alend, Gl wo s if wo were going to be’ lmcxml toat all. Ho wanted me to make a
hargain and to renounce my american ci p. T told him that it was a matt
A0 T kol 16 o amevioan sitiaen, oot ot that [ want to make any ground atih
but as it took place naturally and ns the fact existed, I wanted totake advantage of itas
such. 1 told him it isof advantago for you that you hould have me an smeriosn oltisn,
T have no burgain to make with you about my american papers, no bargain on such
matter as that. Mr. Charles N y own mu\'\wm. and other witnesses also.
There are men among the prisoners who know that last year Mr Rey
Forget came to the Saskatchewan and said I could have a place in the
it, and that it was a good chance for the Half-breeds of the Saskatchewan. If I had
been so anxious for position I would have grasped at this place; but I did not, and
M. Nolin has some knowledge of that. I speak of those things to defend my character
as it has been said that [ am egotistical

e agitation in the
‘would certainly be constitut

speaks of

ories would have heen constitutional and
ity opinion we had not been stiacked. Perhape

the Crown has not been able to find out the par that we were attacked, but as we
ere on the scene it was easy to understand.  When we send ons to the Govern-
17 i poiiooanid when tho rumors wers inoreadidg
every day that Riel had been shot here or there, or that Riel was going to be shot by

such and such a man, the police would not pay any on to it. 1 am glad that T
have mentioned the police, because of the testimon 1 as been given in the |-n‘<
during the e).mnumnnu o( many of the witnesses. 1f n

to the witnesses d have asked them when it was
single policeman or a snwle officer. I have respected the policen
L lisre rospectad the offoers of the polios the paper that Tsent to Major roser is 8
oot ot it <We respect you Major” Thore are papers which the Crown has in ite
hands and which show that den among the Police, if you will allow me
40 aay it in the Court as T have said n v g
Your Honors, Gentlemen of the J was & man of today perhaps it would be

ynsumphlmn B Githas vy o che et ool S0 g, 40d B sl W0

proper, mamer, and it s not w
Tibelled for 15 years that T do
arace of o 1o the founder of Manitoba ; Tknow that tlmlw]\ Yiavono  open roud for

ve big influence concentrated, as a hig amount of vapou

liaws by what 1 sufered for 15 years, by what [ have done e Maoitolis
aud the peopl of the North-Wes ing, if I give offence T
do not speak to insult. Yes, you aro the pioncers of civilization, the Whites aro the
pmnezﬂ of B e Totius denoriliseion. Do ekbe
offended ldies, i el o i oo st o are e vl s ek
e frends and Father,the Raverend ‘Prissta of
nvictions are strong. o have been witnesses
to show that immediately after grent patience, I could come baak 4o the vempeos | et
Tor them

e of the witnesses here, George said that T spoke of A AhMahop
o the opportunity T proposed I
would have questioned him as to what T said o that you would understand me. - 1 hav
Known Archbishop Taché us a great benefnctor, T have seen hins surrounded by his great
property, the ]vmprru of a widow whose r sing near, he bought the
around and t

1 was

way t0 try and get her property at n cheap price. 1 read
(B Ui icess itk your lovg prayens dovosr the widoen Aud ss Achbishop
Taché is my great henzfmctnr, as ho i my father T would say bocause he has done me ah
immense deal of nd because there was no one who had the courage to tell him, T
e 1 acknovledge all he bus done for me. As to Bishop

randin, it was on the sume grounds. 1 have other instances of Bishop Taché, and the
witness could have snid as the Revd Father Moulin s « When you speak of such pérsons
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as Archbishop Taché you ought to say he made a mistake not that he committed robbery.”

T say that we have béen patient a long time and when we seo that mild words only serve.

ascovers for great ones t0 do wrong, it is time when we are justified in saying that robbery

is robbery everywhere and the guilty ones are bound by the force of public nplmon to
tako notice of it. The one who has the cournge to spoak out in that way

heing an outrageous man becomes in fact o benefactor to thoso men themselses and to

society.

When we got to the church of St Antoine on the 18th, there was a witness who
said, I think George Ness, that I said to Father Moulin “You are a Protestant Acw\\
ding to my theory I was not going to speak in that way, but T said that we were pro
ting against the Canndian Government and thut, he was. protesting against us, and oo
e were two protestants in our different ways.

‘As to religion what is my belief? What is my insanity about that! My insanity,
Your Honors, Gentlemen of the Jury, is that I wish to leave Rome aside inasmuch as it
inthe cuusoof division Ltween the Catholics il Protestants. T didnot wish t fore my
views because, in Batoche, to the Halfb that followed me I used the word Carte
blanche. Ti 1 have any influence in the \vw Worl I«.I it is to help in that way and even if
it takes two hundred years to become practical, then after my death that will bring out

festionl |\-xu](= and then my children will shake lnmls with the Protestants of the New
Wor

ndly manner.. T do not wish those evils which existin n Europe to be con-
T e among the Half-breeds. I do not wish that to be
sepsatod in Ativics, that work is 2ot the work of smms laye ab sie’ st N
work of hundreds of
y condition is helpless, so helpless that my good Jawyers and they have. it
with conviction (Mr. Fitzpatrick in his beautiful speech has proved he believed
insane), my condition seems to be so helpless that they have recourse to try and pro\‘e
insauity totry and save me that way. 11 L am intane, of course I don't know it, it is a
propeciyof| insanity to be unable to know s the kind of mission that I
It is said tha S 1 had m\.mlf mm“lmlg.,d & prophet by
preeds huve somo intellig Capt. Young who has been so

polite and gentle durh
Teom o military point Of view waa mice, that the lins of defonos was aise, Uimé shurwed
some intelligerice. It is not to be supposed that, the Haltbreeds acknowledge me as o
prophet if they had not seen that I could see something into the future. If I am blessed
rithont mtesare T ouns tee mmething lnto the futare we all sce into the Fatesn e o8
less. As what knml uf a prop]n'L would ?

o huvo a stick in his haud snd threatening, » proplistof ewilf 16 fus Ml LU

acktowladged raoas o prophetif on the other sids priseta come and aay that Tt polllestt
fhiars acw sl offinc,guod o, come o thie b o provs AAEIERE TERR RO

that T am decent in

‘manners, in conbining all together you have a_decent prophet.
An insane man cannot withhold his insunity, if T fnsane my heart will tell what s in
me. Last night while I was taking ex the who guides and assists me a
comedlon 30 1 mo that teamorrow sobabedy will oome “¥aides” and Ky ke Kokt
soled by that. While I was recurring to my God, to Our God, I suid: But woe to me if you
ot heip me, and those words cawe o me i the morning “Tu the morning some one will
come C'aider, that is to-day vid that to my two guards and o for the two
guards. T told n.m that % the ~|v|nt that (Ilrecls e is thu spirit of truth it is to-day
tind T expoct This smorning the good dootee who han esse of s el 4 AREUEN

d: “You will »p«uk toxday botoro the Gourty” T ioggné T poukiict sl it e
Rhione aerls wec< im0 toe o tel paa Aha6.T wonl, hk et liberty to speak.
s o Fronch wond 1n T Jomencs T beliave that thata wasbabs aend i L AN
in it, but the most part English. It is true that my good luwyers from the province of
Quebec have given me good advice.

Mr. Nolin came into the box and said that Mr. Riel said that he heard a noise in

his bowels and that I told him that it meant something. I wish that he had said what T
said, what T wrote on the paper of which he speaks, perhaps he can yet be put in the box.
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1 said to Nolin Do you hear?” Yes, T said there will be trouble in the North-West
and was it 5o or not, his there been no trouble in the North-West > Besides Nolin knows.
that among his nationality which is mine, he knows that the Half breeds as hunters can
foretell many things, perhaps some of you have a special knowledge of it. I have seen
Halt broeds who say . “my hand is shaking, ths part of my hand is shaking, you wil seo
such a thing today,” and it happens.  Others will Tecl the flesh of my leg move
in such a way, it is a sign of such a thing,” and it lv\pp» ns They are men who know that
T speak right. If the witness spoke of that fact with which he mumone(l to sl\m\' that T
was insane he did not remember that perhaps on that poin he is insane himself, because
the Halfbreed by the movement of his hand, sometimes of i shoulders, sometimes his
leg, can have certain knowledge of what will happen To bring Sir John to my feet, it
it was well reported it would appear far more reasonable than it has bee
M. Blake, the leader of the opposition, is
He never had as much at stake as T had, although the prov
is not as great as the North-West.

m glad that the er\n have proved that T am the leader of the Half-breeds in the
Mondh West. 1 wil perhapo bo ane day so nowledged as more than a leader of the Half-
B s copceiunity of being. scknowledged ss s Jeader of good
in this great country.

One of the vutuexse» said that I intended to
had no mystery he would have seen that | could not be given to the Irish
without being given to England, he rested o upon his uumuun

hate is snother thing sbout tho pertition of the lands o do not know if
T am prepared to speak of it here because it would become public information, there is so
much at stake that if 1 explained that theory Canada would not very long remain
quiet.

Capt Deane has seen my papers, T have sent them somewh
and after secing them he came there and said that I was an i a6 man and pretty
shrewd. T have written these documents and they are in the hl\mk of those whom I
trust. Ido not want to make them public during my trial what I have not made public

we were in arms at I»mu he, there hay V-rmu there different times when
fhe Conneil decided b0 o tionalities to_come to our
assistance, but three dels ions waited for my ordes u‘md h\w not started. Why? Because
1 had an .‘h,m eds at

ce of Ontario is great it

ive Upper Ca anad to the Trish, if he

re but he has seen them,

he same way as 1 had

at the nation would be punished, Why! Because
Vhat s the meaning of that! Thero was a dis-

they should do it at onc d

nts the conscience
Bl breeds quickly separated from
od and. they wers punished and T

the way to nusw.
to say yes: Oh my God, I do nw will 1\|vr| hocause the F
Rome in such a quick manner it
{old e it would happen, ity of those who are there can prove it
--\eum s pot sl proghet”. The ninsiosnth oot cr
wobably for that reason I have found the word * Exovede ", I prefer lu be
i e Jouare, T am simply one of tho fock, equal to
the. it is any satisfaction to the doctor to know what kind of insanity I have,
if they are going to call my pn-m.mm insanity, » humbly, through the grace of
God I believe I am the prophet of the New World,
X wish you to believe that L um not trying to

the standing of & man, the  Prot that e is sine

insanity, there is in the manner, in
what

e,
have you got tosay ! I have to at ctical results. Ts it practical that you be
acknowledged as & prophetl T it practcal to soy 1. T thise 1 g, Half eeds
have -eknoledged e e

in beginning to bocome practical. T d ot widh for my satistaction the name of prophet.
Generally that, titleis accompanied which such a burden, that if there s satisfaction for




your vanity there is a check to it. To set myself up s Pope ! No,no! T said Ibsiered
that Bishop Bourget had succeeded the Pope in spirit and in truth. Why
while Rome did not pay attention to us, he as a bishop paid attention to us,
You have given me your sstention, Your Honors, you lave given me your
attention Gentlomen of the Jury, and his great audience I o if Igo any further
that 1 Toose the favour you have granted me up to this time, and
1 nmung ol sho i 0 prctical rosults, T will stop here, mastee of myscl
thrmlgh the help of God. I to say, your Honors,
Gentlemen of the Jury, m e are at your discretion, so con-
i chtest anxiety, not even the slightest doubt as to your
serdict, Tl cliunes of iy mind concerning the favourablo decision which T expect
¢ unjustifiable presumption spon my_part. T simply trus: thnt
through God’s hel, »yln balance every thing in a consciencious manner and that after
Baving hoard what 1 had o say, that you wil soquiv e, T o' siiet v LRUREN
you are only half a jury, but your number of six does not preveut you from being just
and comciencious, your number of six  doos ot prevent me giving You my confdenco

; because you Ap]m\\tml those men do not boliove that T disrespect you, it
is ot by your own choi authorized by those above you, by the authorities
in the North-West, you have adml according to your duty, and ‘while it is in_ our view,
against the guar ibe & the Providence of God will bring out good of
what you have done
Although dmm rt has been in existence for the last 15 years, T thought T had a
right to be tried in another court. T do not distespect this court, T do respect it, and what
is called by my lw ned yers the incompetency of the court, must not be
Veenuse I have all respect
T would like to call your attention to, before you retire to deliberate,
are: Ist. That the House of Commons, Senate, and ministers of the Dominion who
make laws for d,h land and govern it are no representation whatever of the people of
the North-Wes
dly. Tl‘rth» Nort
great, defect of its parent.
3rdly. The number of mbers vll‘c(ul fo
sham representative uro and no representative Government at all
British \11:mlmu, \\lmh rulen to,day the. worldy and the Britsh consttution ek
defined such ¢ e i el e Novth Woat “Tor
Government, which plainly maeuns that thero is 10 respon
vhich has been shown here yesterday your are compelled to admit it,
sibility, it i
Good sense «-nmhmed with ~L|enu(n theories lead to the same conclusion.
By the m v lnid before you during my m,.l witnesses on_both sides made it
that (rm after petition it the Federal Government, and so
|rrve|wnx|hl\- is that Government to the \mth \\'(H that in the course of several
years v»-udc ng nothing to satisfy the |-m]»lc am.u reat land, it has even hardly been
able to answer once or to give a single ¢ fact l<l indicate absolute lack
of m,.m.,n..mv and therefore insanity co pmm.x with paraly:
‘ministers and irresponsible Government. and its little one the Northe
West Council made up their SEEs my petitions by sllrmumlmb me slyly and
tompting to jump upon me suddently and upon my people in the Suskatchewan.
Happily when théy uppen red and showed their teeth to devour, | \\n.. ready ; that is
what is colled m jigh treason and. Tor which they hold me to day, ' Oby m
i Dt i ok i nl Jesus Christ the only one who can save and heip me, i/
have tried t0 tear me to
If you take the plen.of the defence, that | am not responsible for my acts, equit me.
sompltel, inon [ uve been quarrelling with an insane and irresponsible Government.
u pronounce in favour of the Crown, which contends that [ am responsible, acquit

antees of

\-West Council generated by the federal Government has the

the Council by the people make it only a

Y o
\.y the science
e T e

hee
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ame all the sume  You aro perfectly justified in declaring that having my renson nd
sound mind | have acted reasonably and in_ self-defence, while the Governmen
acouser, being irresponsible and consequently insane, cannot but have acted wrong, and
if high treason there is, it must be on its side and not on my part.

His Hoxor—Are you done?
Prisoxrr.—Not yet, if you have the kindness to permit your attention for a while,
His Hoxor.—Well, proceed.

Paisoen—For fiftoen yoars [ have boen neglocting myself, even_one of the most
R 1 i Uikt 7ith o1l ray veaity L meves was partioulss. as foim
clobhmg yes, because [ never had much to buy any clothing. The reverend Father
ré, has often had the kindness to feed my family with n sack of flour and Father
Fourmm\d, my wifo and clildren wro without e, whils Lan working more than
any representative in the North-West although I am simply a guest of this country, a
st of the Half beods of e ol ichaptir. Alough sa s siple) guont Lorie it
ter_the condition of the people of the Saskatchewan, at the risk of my life, to better
pay. 1t hias always been
ving one day. 1t will be for you to pronounce. 1f you say | was vty
you can conscientiously acquit me, as | hope through the help of God, you will.
Jill console those who Have been iftcen years around me, only partaking in my e
ings ; what you will do in justice to me, in justice to my fu o
in justice to the North-West, will be rendered a hundred
and to use a sacred expression, life everlasting in the other.

1 thank your Honors for the favour you have granted me in speaking, I thank you for
the attention you have given me, ntlemen of the Jury, and [ thank those who have had
the kindness "to_encourage my imperfect way of speaking the Englih language by
heir good attention. 1 put my specch under the protection of Saviour, he
is the only one who can make it effective, it is possible it should become effctive. oa it
s proposed o good men, to good people, and to good ladies also,

Mr. Robinson for the prosecution addresses the jury and after him the presiding
Judgn delivers his charge.
o jury returning, after having retired to consider their verdict, the clerk of
el sentlemen, are you agreed upon your verdict 1 How say you? Is the
prisoner guilty or not guilty

The jury find the prisoner guilty.

K. —Gguhlemen of the Jury

Cue hearken to your verdict, as the Court records it :
You find the priso al

ouis Riel, guilty, so say you all,

The Jury answered : Guily.

A Junon. Honor, 1 have been asked by my brothergurors o e
the prisoner to &he mercy nf the Cro

mmend

M. Justion Riciannsox.— may say in answer to you that the recommendation
which ynu have given will be forwarded in proper manner to the proper anthorities.

r. Ronisox.—Do Your Honors propose to pass sentence now. [ believe the proper
e upon the prisoner.
Mr. Justice Ricnannsox.—Louis Riel, have you anything to say why the sentence
of the an should not be p.mmmml upon you, for the offence of which y
found guil

Pklsmxn.—\'ns, Your Honor.

M. Frrzrataick.—Before the accused answers or mukes any remarks as suggested




Your Honor, I would beg leave simply to ask Your Honor to kindly note the objection
i e alrcady tnkentto e ariadistion bt s OoteR

M. Justics Ricuanosox.—It is noted, M. Fmpmmk, You understand of course
~why 1 cannot rule upon it.
- FrTaPATHIOR. It is simply 5010 o reserve any resours the law may allow here-
after.
Prisoxs

.—Can T speak now 1

Mr. Justice Ricuarpsox.—Oh yes.

Prisoxer—Your Honor, Gentlemen of the Jur,

Mr. Justion Ricmarpsox.—There is no jury now, they are discharged.

Prisoxer—Well, they have passed away before me.
Mr. Justice Ricnarpsox.—Yes, they
msowen — Dt abthe same time [ consir them yot skl ther, skl i thei sote
The Court has done the work for me, and although at first appearance it seems to be
against mo, [am s0 confident in the ides which I have had th honor b0 oxpress yosterday,
that I think it is for good and not for my loss. Up to this moment, I have been con-
sidered by a certain party as insane, by another p\rt\ o o criminal, By auother perty 8
a man with whom it was doubtful w h her to have any intercourse. So there was
hostility and there was contempt, and there was avoidance. To-day, by the verdict of the
Ceun one of these three situations has (lh'\ppeaye«
T suppose that afer aving been condemned, T wil cense to bo called s ool and
for me it s a_great advantage. 1 consider it as a greatadvantage. If | have a mission, T
say “ IE” for (h» sake of those who dnnl)c, but for my part it means ¢ Since, ” since T
have o mission, T comnot, ulfl sy mission as long & 1 am Iookad Wpon A s ineste
being—human being, at the moment that | begin to ascend that scale, I begin to succeed,
have ask Your Honor, if I had anything to_say why my sentence should
not be passed. Yes, it is on that point particularly my attention is directed. Before saying
anything about it, I wish to take notice that if there has ever been any contradiction in
my lfo, it is at this moment, and do T appear excted] A
<control ‘myself? And it is just on religion and on_poli

© passed avay.

o uch it comes naturally, from
Xexpsrlmcv‘swm” ome of my diffeulies disappearing. Should 1 be executed, at lenst if
I were going to be execcuted, [ would not be exceuted as an insane man, it would be a
areat consolation (nr my mother, for il for my children, for my brothers, for my
relatives, even for tectors for my countrymen, I thanke the gentlemen who were
composing the Jur 7 Tor Nasing recanaiontied wh S0 Wi s clamency of the Ovuet, Wi T
express the grent hope that | have just expressed to you, I don't express it without
ground, my hopes are reasonable, and since nv.\ are recommended, since the recommend-
ation of the Jury to the Crown is for clemency. 1t would be easy for me, your Honors, t
make an incendinry protest, and take the three reasons vhich Tove boon. rosbonnble 1t
»y my good lawyers and learned lawyers, about the Jury, about their selection,
about tho-on6 who sclocted them, and ahout the competeney of the Court, bus why sbould
1do it, since the Court has undertaken to prove that rensonable man ! Must not,
1 take advantage of the situation to show that they are right and that T am reasonable,
aad yestarday, “when T said by repeating the evidence which has ocn given aguinst me
on that you had a decent prophet, | hav today the great
g it is 50, besids clearing me of the stain ot insanity, clearing my
stai . [ think the verdict that has been given against me is
proof that e wiers fiks uidhacy mmyslt, bt that the lroampiatios oad A5 Ul e
en is more than ordinary, are more rdinary, and_although I consider myself
B s othecs,yet by tho will of God. by Sereletr by the circumstances which have
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surrounded me for fifteen years, [ think that T have been called to do something which at
least in the North-West niobody has done yet, and in some way I think that to a certain
number of people the verdict against me to day is o proof that may be [ am a prophet,
may be Riel is a prophet. He suffers for it. Now, [ have been hunted as an elk for fiteen
years. David has been soventeen, would have to be about two_ years still ; if
‘the misfortunes that L have had to go through were to be as long as those of the old
David, I would have two years still, but [ hope it will come sooner,
_ T have two reasons why I would ask that sentence should not be passed upon me,
me. You will excuse me, you know my difficulty in et English, and T
i feovere, Your Houor. .. Bven had hing it would
have been imperfect exmugh, aud ve not_prepared, A wonld excuse
what T havs o say, the vy Sehich T will bo able, pernps, 1o oxpres
e troubles of the Saskatchewan are not to be taken as an isolated fact. They
B il e v wae. The hosd of tha diotty e e iffculy of
River. The troubles nf the Red River were called lhl- troubles of

i

of being the troubles of the North-West
the North-West and the troubles of 15 .1 the troublos of the \".uh \\ est, the

suggestion comes naturally to the Lty .»r n..- i oyl of the
troubles of the North-West, if the troubles of 1885 are a continuatior l,m,'- il
I say they are not. Canada, no,

80104 if ey aro oo troublen sntively different
Tought not to say Canada, because it was a certain number of individuals, ,wh,.,h seven
or eight hundred that can have passed for Canada, but, they came to Red River
they wanted to tak o possesion of the country without consulting the peopls
was the Hal breed people  There were tain number of white pionee
population, but the great majority were Half-hreod:
ok up arms against the invaders from the Enst without knowin
were so far apart from us, on the other side of the Lake
had any hateed gaiot shem. o did not know th
They eame boldly oare they | They sid : We ar
country.  Wall, knowing TR done agai
Enst, what we used to do against the Indians from the South and from the W
B8 they would invad us. Pablio opinion in the Siates lelped us a great
dowt menn to say that it is needed to obiain justice on this side of the fine that the
tates should interfere, but at that time, as there was no tele
between the Enstern Provinces and the North-West, no railrond, and 4s
of going to Canada was through the United States,
news had to pass by tho States, and
and observations o an people.
besides, the Opposition in g Cuads do

among the

th

it it cannot be said_that we

They

o without notification
the possessors of
s parties coming fr

m. ﬂu-\ e

to the Government :
h-Wost, without consultng the people !
e hundreds ;

ke tn call it so, as a
body, with whom the LAn.uh,m hm--mmle( lmm-(l Did they with them as lhv\'
treat with Indians? It will be for them to that they -lnl Ilnl J Joh \
Macdonald and the late Sir George Cartier delegated Vr\ the ion
o meetour delegutes,delegates who hd I)w-n ‘.,.p,.mm o ioe s Frasklant, (Hat g the
the L he Py anci vL .unl nm delegates

y Cour

Bl the i

Rome for the purpose

third, hy o ok b b oo + o
the North-West. When those threo delegates had invited us to send delegates wo

thought thuv it was safe to send delogates, aid 1

pointed the Reverend Father Richot,
now curate of Saint Norbert, in Manitoba ; [ appe

ed the late Judge Black, who
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Sothund ; 1 appointed Alfrd 1 Soott, e is dead alao, and these thce delogaten starisd,
B carin of vigl onditions, ¥ go and pat it befurs the Cssatian (et
ment, and when our d'lunm came to Ottawa the Government wanted to nm Lhem
as Tndians, Tsuppose.

chot said if you dowt give me in writing my acknowledgement as
dumm "Twill go bask and you wil go with your bayoneta o the Naih SaiccaskAiNe
T am invited, I come and what was the answer { Our delegates had been
ree times. How were they received in Canada ? They were arrested. To show
? s the right of nations, they were arrested. They had not a formal trial, but
the fact remains that they were arrested, and the protest of Rev. Father Ritchot is still
in the document.  Howerer, there was  treaty.  Sir John A Macdonald was delegaied,
the late orge Ca was delegated to treat with the people, with those th
@olagins, wiw i e oy calmoriulged Were dhy acknovledged oo xlelegmcn of
Ricl? Oh ! no, they were acknowledged ns the delegates of the North-West. The late
M. Howe, in his mn}.nu\\lvd‘em ent of the delegates, and in notifying them who had
hcz n delegated by Cay

S hokawisd o s o 0
North-Weat thay It is acknowledged by the Canadian Government by
that very same fact tl the_treaty of which I am_speal
the treaty of the North-West—of the delegates of the
suy that it was the delogutes of the NortirWest they wantad to,avoid: the et that
wis 1o being at all, the whole world knows that it is not so, they cannot avoid me, and
Sir John A. Macdonald hims t of the committee of inquiry about_those
yery. e troubles, the comn ich sat in 1874, Sir John A, Macdonald said : 1
thiik wo wiedge Riel in his status of n Governo at was that treaty ! Was it
an Indian aflir? I it had been an Indian afai, snitobs would nob !n\ehseu =it in
would not be as it is. We had the Manitoba Act, there was an agreem the
How the whole North-West aterest would be cmetdared, ik ute i
ith the North-West, and then having mm.l sl the
ent'vas made those v iples
« Provines srctad ith mpmm\.la
e Halfbreed people
e ey were not. supposed
10 be able r.uhmu'\lw their Tunds, we thought that, at that time, it was a reasonable
o let them go, not because we were willing to let them go, but because it
stemod |mm.ul.‘ wble to have the administration of the till one of the conditions
was that the people of the N Wet wanted the administration of their lands. The
Hulfbreeds had o million and the land grant of 1,400,000 acres owned about
9500000, it T mistab not, whick' - abot 1.3 oé e land of Manitoba. You will see

matter of p
would be fnaugu

prrvplv to lhe “Haltbroeds of Manjtoba, En
“There was no distinction whatever, but in
between the Half breeds of Manitobs, e that they had 240 acres of land. Now the
Canadian Government say, that we will give to the Halt-breeds of the North-West, 240
i yes, but as I have had, thank God, all the time, the
conscinciousness that I had  cortain degree of rogson, Thave made up my mind to
e e o1t ¢ that 1
principle iu the North-West, St o liiagitate Hnlfbrv:exx of the orh W, at
(zoon 18 possbl,the guarantee for the future that o seventh of the lan
will a n to them. And seeing and yourself mnlersmndmg Yow it in dificult for
ety populatmn as the Haltbreod population to have their voice heard, I said what
elongs to us onght to be ours_ Our right to the North-West i acknovledged, our co-
Dropriotorship with the ]n(lmm s acknowledged, since one-seventh of nds is given
us, but we have not the means to be heard, what will we do? I it mmsst A
IF there 15 o other way, we will muke the people who have no country understand_that
we have a country here which we have ceded on condition, we want the seventh of the.
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Tand, and i the barguin s not kept, it s null and void,and wo havo no right to rotreat

and if we cannot have our seventh of the lands from Canada, we will ask the
[PSoplo of the Ststes the Tealins o Some and hlp, us as imimigrante fhe Tkl T ol
count them.

Now, it is my turn I thank you. T count them and T will hov you it Tmadean insane
enumeration of the paries. [ say, we will insite tho Italians of the States, tho T of
the States, the Bavariams of the States, Poles of the States, Beligians of the States and 1
they come R help us here to have the 7th, we will give them each a 7th and to show
that we are not fanatics, that we are not partisans, that we do not wish only for the Ca.
tholies, but that we have a consideration fm' those who are not Catholics said, we will
invite the Danes.  We will invite the Swedes who are numerous i States, and
the Norwegians to come around, and as there are lx,l.ns \\ml HA.” |)w-\‘(1A in British Co-
Tumbia and as British Columbia is a part of the h-West, we said not,only
for ourselves bt speaking of our childrn o on that f they help
us to have our Tth on the twe Roc h have a sov eum

r money, we
ing one seventh of the

North-West,if tho prin
T e b the Nori Wos 3 good, it oug
it is not. possible that our views should be heard, we will, I, as
B e o€ the Bintos and T wil tay 3 yor ove
crossing the line in the East do it and help the Tndisns and the Halt breodu of the Back
to have a revenue equivalent to about one seventh. And what would be the reward of the
B e Coriane ourd i e oot to take a part of
the coumn,und makea new German Indian world somewhere in British Nor
But that is the lnst resort, and if T had not had a verdict of guilt agains
have nover i t. Vesterday it was just thoso things that T ave ay S tosay when T
e a reason not to mention them, and when I said as one of the witnesses said
fhat my proclumation was in Pem o, I thin ght becaue of this trial; you sco
that my protentions is that I can spenk a lictle of the futuro events has Drought
out the question of the seventh and. although o one has explained e iy 1 o
now still there is enough said about the sevenths of the lands and the division of the
lands into sevenths, seven nationaliies, while it cught to have boen said between ton
‘nationalities, that by telegraph to-<day my proclmation is in Pembina truly and the States
have my ideas. They have my idens. le Fouias element, untlemen, vi hout any tangible
okject ave erose th lines savoral times for tho o of have called
revenge,but now that Riel whose name i pro s known
0 be in his troublesfor life and death for himself and. bis nafitionality, now that my trial
ves me a cortain increase of co ebrity, now that thoso questions are appearing »..-m
public now that th Iand league in the States, that the very
Ses Fenianism isstillthere and qui booause they have 1o pir
around which to gather their numbers and when they cate 3
will smile? And Gabriel Dumont on the other side of the line, is that Gabriel Dumont inae-
tive 7 T believe not. g o o me from chis e T s e T
written it. I have written a document of that kind and put in in the Bands of Captain
n, three weeks o is is not an u\s[um'mn of the © the right to
BB G £ tho previscn o wint p e gl o0
wish that means, these means. 1 don to call the ln-npl\. from the States on
this side of the line. No, T wish it only if there is no other possibility. If there is no other
rt, of course that is my wish. The last. remed ¥ bo extreme is always
a remedy and is always worth something to try it, but if there is justice s L still b
Oh ! here it seems to me T have become insané to hope still, T have scen so
oy postion and where are they 1 But Lepin hus had o scaold also . Manit
e was not executed. Why ! Because he was recommended to the clemency of the court.
Tho tden of theTeht T hese tus hands, and T have two sides on my head, and T have two

ek o
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countries. T am an American citizen and T have two countries, and I am taken here as a
British subject. Idon't al .mmﬂ.. my iden of the Tth, I say becasse the othes s e extreme
and an extremity | dow't wish for it dl extremmex have come and I have come to
extramitios Just sow, bt there are so e hopes yet. For we, my heart is full of hope but
my frieuds, | suppose that many of them think thit | am gone

1¢ Canada is just with me, if Canada respects my life, my liberty and my reputation,
they will give me' all what :he) bave taken from me, and ns 1 said yesterday, tha
izmense {ofoencs whih my gathering for the last fiftcen years and which as
the power of steam contained in an engine will have its way, then what will T do? Ty
will do that perhaps Riel il 0 to_the Dominion Ministry, and there instead of calling

e parties from the States, he will by means, constitutional means of the country, invite
the same parties from Europe as emigration. Butlet it be well understood that as my right
has been acknowledged as the co-proprietor of the soil with the Indians, T want to assert
Lhnt right. It is constitutionnally acknowledged in the Manitoba Act by the 31st clnuu of

nt Act and it does not extinguish the Indian title, it says two words, extinguish-
ingaad 1,100,000 sres of B T B o 5 cach child of th half-breeds gots 1.7
naturally T am at least entitled to hesame I¢ is why T spokeof the 7th. For the Indians,
not of the lands but of the revenue a es. But somebody will say on what ground
will you ask 1-7th, of the lands? Do you own the lands ? In En[.lnml in France, the me:h
and the English have lnd, the first who were in England, they wrtheowners o the
and they transmitted to gererations Now by the soil they have had their start s a nation.
Who starts the nations ! The very same one who creates lhem God. God is the master of
the universe, our planct is his lund, and the nations, the tribes, are members of ks family,
and as a good Father he gi L.\«-; a portion of his lands to that ...uon to that tribe, to
s his

great territory, but thn territory has been given

¥ o i Frans nod o hicks you cannot exist without

s is the principle. God caunot create a tribe without

locating it, we are not birds, we have to walk on the ground, and that ground is en-

Hobt with many things which besilee fis own valis nacedses e Wi R

ha Well, on what principla

it be that the Canadian Lvo\emmen( bave given the Tth to tho. Half e

B 51 Ty % e e oo thie pra ation has. the means of i m.p.mmg

life that Indians or Half-breeds have 2ok, 0 that iy they

value,

your land is worth to day 1-7th, of what it
oot country unopene dis worth to you only
14

sa

S5 e vhen ! have soren pates o %o beop cus., They ‘made the fapety Wit
us. As they made the treaty, 1 say iy had o ohmerve 4 aid i ey observethe trenty 1
No, there was a question of amnesty and when the treaty was made, one of the questions
was thiat befors the Canading govermment would send & Governor {nbo Manitoba an impe-
rialamnety should be pociimed a0 aato bt ot althedifultssof the pas, nstead of

lniming o general amnesty before the arrival of the Governer, ok place tho
50 of Seprember 1870, the amnety was pmmmed tho 25t .\pnl So Luflered
for five years unprotected. Besides I was expelled from the Hou: say,out-

N e T anbue asa mumberin s Tast aad thet fho ke s \\'estImnhl not,
be in bwo places and they say that T w . outlawed, but no notification was sent to my house
‘ven of any procesdings of the court, They say that L was outlawed and when Uhs stangsy
came five years after the time it should have come, [ was banished for five years and
Lepine deprived of his political rights for ever. Why? Because he had given political rights
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aitobe: Is that all No. Dic the amaeety coms tho Tmperial Governemun“ No'.
at all. It came from our sister colony in the Fast, and mind to
o, T say the one being S ik fii) Suin weal, T will g A ot
side, and T am banished. It is a wonder, I did not take and go to Mexico. Natu-
rally I went to the States, Amnesty was given by the Sceretary of fate at Ottawn, tho
b 10 treated with us. That is no amnesty. Tt is an insult to n s been an.
B 1 te v yours ag i was e il o ot it as such.
But are there proofs that an imperial aumesty has been promised ? Yes many, Archbishop
Taché, the delegate who had been called, the prelate who has been called from R:\mp, tocome
and pacify the North-West received a commission to make, to accomplish that pa
and in general terms was written his commission, and when
etoro Lsend deegaten o nid: T will give you
v will be an Imperial amnesty, not because T can promis responsibility
Attty guarantedd o mo by the voprosentatives of the Cromn, and thy
Ministers themselves, the Ministers of the Crown. Instead of an n imperial amnesty came
‘the amnesty of which T spoke, and, besides, an amnesty which came five years too late, and
which took the trouble of banishing me for five years more.

Mr. Justice Ricuarvsoy. s that all?

Prisowkr.  No. Excuse me if T feel weak a stop,at times, I wish you would
bo kind enough to,—But the lust cluuso of the \lmmm..x Act speaks also a little of
the X est, speaks that a temporary Governm be put into the North-
B it not ore thad five years. A the t
Govermment, how long has 3¢ Jasted nov ! How long has u‘\.\ms now ? For fi
years and it will be temporary yet. It is agninst ¢ tobn. Act, it is o

BRUE7 8 tis Norkir Weat, that, this NotihWest. Counell shoetd continse
B o it o i of the understanding.
say against the Kmh-,..m who compose the North-West Council
B foy yeaercay aguingt the jury and to sy agn
B i bes T ek of the Juacitutions
of ths North-West, the Manitoba_treaty has not
neither in regard to I

h  x
their s sl T suppose the Falf brecds n Manitoba, in 1870,

a0t i hundred and forty acres of land, but it is to be understood that there

i e knw('!]u‘y One was small, but in its smallness it had its

i cater rights than the rights

d_that um\l\\uum
Biuitoe shauld b falfled o

ihe Hal reeds
might have gone to the Noth Wk, o Eestaéahowan and bave o0 natt to s for any
other things for themselves, h they had the right to help their e m hou
thought that they were in a 7] fix, because charity
the people of Manitobe have not been satisied, nor the b ause
during those ive years which lapsed between 1870 D75, e e e ks
those Taws they embraced the people, the Half-breed people, and because they had not their
rights, because the leaders were always threatened in their existence. The people themselves
did not, feel any security, and they sold their lands, because they thought they would
nover get, first, that T0h oE Aty bk thel< Yands hecamte Shey saw tha they had o
protection, and they went East. What have they received in receiving the 240 acres ! They
received 240 acres of land and as matter of fact 1 can prove ghat by cireumstances
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Bl of them, sold for one half of the price 850 o $40, 860 or 435, And toshow
ate in which they huve been kept, those who como from the Red River and | the
Half Ireeds of Red Ri d Rner trouble of 1870, appeared
wonder, of egotism and n[ ummmblenm, because they appeared to be in the ks
of 1883, which are the i of the troubles of Rad Biver.
The amnesty has Sone given by the right parties. Ammesty has not been

to Lapine, on of the leaders who vas then ss Dusmant i to d6 et &l SIS
allowod o come back into the coatey when fen yours after T woull Un vttt SR
of the ehances which T had in 1870'to do something for my people and for myself and for
emigration, so o cut down my influence forever. Itis why I did not come at that
time, and I thought that T would never come to the country. Did I take my American
papers 2 pat my papers of american naturalization during the time of my five years banis
ment? No, I did not want to give to the Statesa citizen of banishment, but when my ba-
nishmeut had expired when an officer nt Battleford somewhere on this side of the line in
Benton invited me to come to the North-West, Lsaid : No, T will go to an American Court

will declare my intention now that T am free, to go back and choose another land, it

h i he

many, on

£F

N » say that kind of adien to my mother, to my brothers, to my
sisters, to_my_friends, to my_contry
back to this cou ol not.

which I had been suffering and in it
Teit sl 0 camtisae, i s sousd sman o T hooghs T gns 111 epict RIS Tegin
a career on the other side of the line. In Manitoba is that all about the amnesty ? No.
of the 1,400,000 acres of land have I received it? No, I have not received it.
ds, my mother have applied to have it, No. Could not every one else apply for
ther would ,\Wh fm tlneu sons, and that was all right, but for my mother
toapply for me, it was not. Last year, thero was a proof herein the box not
long nzo. that when I asked uuh IIM\ 1 was refused. Was that indemnity based on a
fancy ¢ I wanted my lands in Manitoba o be paid. Besides when they treated, the treaty
was mm]vlh(wl on 31st May 1870, it was )\vmul toon t] 1th June and Sir Geo. Cartier had
aid ; t Riel govern the country u he troops get there.” And from the 24th June
And what was the reward for it? When
aying Riel's banditti has taken
i, the night at midnight 5o as to have a chance to
raise & row in l'uu Garry and to have the q]nr to call for in the morning, but heaven was
against him Tk S e et there during the mgm and
he had to come at ten o'clock next morning, Iu» 4-\\ tered one door of Ft. Garry
. T kept in sight of hin 1T i mot et o Do ia K St b
T say T will keep at a distance where 1 can be seen, and it
I come, a General knows where his ennemy i nugm to know
00 yards abead of bin. Wil bo wus suying that Ricls baodics hnd
Tt lns been my rowrd, When { spe o an indemnity
of 835,000 to call for something m complete t] 0000 1 dont believe that
rating your Honor. In 1871 the Feni Pembina. Major Irvine, one of the
witnesses, | was introduced to him. And when | Urough o the) Gorecusstal ST
Governor Archibald was there anxions to have my help hecause he knew that we were the.
door to Manitoba, and he said ns the question of amnesty came, he said : “ If Riel comes
forward, we will protect I| = “ pour la circonstance actuelle,” we will protect him,as long
as we need him, we will protect hiim, but as soon as we dont want him, as soon as we ‘vont
eed him, we want him 5o fall back in the sume position as he i today ", And that answer
ad been brought because it had been represented that while | would be helping the
Government. the parties would be trying to shoot me in the back : * Pour la_ circons-
tance actuelle” they said, “we will protect him”, What reward have [ had for that? The first
reward that I had was that that took place in the first days of October 1871 hefore the
year was ended. OF cours they gave @ chance to Rislto come onh & el ad it
e loyal then. My friend, my glorious friend in Upper Canada, now_the leader of
the opposition, Mr. Blake said: “We must prevent Riel from arriving.” Whei he was Minis-
1




162

in Upper Cannda b issued  proclamation of 83,000 for those who would a
Rl That was my. rovard, my dowry. Bat the Cunadisn Governinent what rovard did
ey give ine? In the T, 65 tiwo an g b be n slockion, 1873, T Rietveciii
BN k1 1 s slections 1 'will be trouble o ho bas & vght 1o «..mL we have
made a treaty with him, we do not fulfil it, we promise him amnesty, he is outlawed, wo
take his country and he has 1o room even to sieep, he comes to our help he governs th

country d two months, and m.- reward is that he is a banditti, he co

of d and fity men, and the reward is five

SR B Mk houd 36 o ot that time that 1 took tho name of Dévid nll(\ Ldid not
RS 1o inyaelt, th Eomarable Judge of the court of Manitota, M. D ubue to day Shoona

‘who gave me the name of David. When [ had to elf in 1 when he
wanted to write me under the name which would not be know n, so that my letters could
me to me, and I may say that in that way it is a legal name. From that point of view
gren, I put in a parenthesis T s right, I think, as a souvenir of my friend
pper Canads, who caused the circumstances, who brought me that name, fo make
snmethu\g Wpecial bt 16, an, beaides, when the king of Judea was speaking of the pu-
avid’s, didn’t he use to refer to him in that way . Yes he did and as
something similar, I thought that it was on y proper that T should take the name of
st D.\\u\ " |)nt it was suggested tome in a n manner, and [ could not avoid it.
n Government said: “Well, le will be in the elections here and he
have. nn the ngm with all those grievances to speak, and he will embarass the Gover
So they called upon my great prote Av\'hhl\]mp rm,.» and they said to Archbishop
Taché I don’t know what, but in the month of February '72 shop Taché came to
me, an id: “The authorities of Lower Can: w\m you to go on the other
i wiaf the ceie & it would
e my interest to go there, but T am in a crisis, which the people of the
country, and as it concerns the public besides me T will speak torttig 1»!:“1( as the public
are speaking to me.” But the A\v\'ll);l\]mp gave such good reasons that although I
could not yield to these reasons, T came to o conclusion mm him and 1 said: My Lord,
you have titles to to my acknowledgen ut which shall ne be blotted out of my heart,
and although my judgment in this matter altogother diffors wit] asider
nore rnwnnnhlv 3
re reasonable.” |
bishop to go and take on yous shnulrlﬂs the.
t; will go.  But let it be known that it
is not my word, that I do it to please you, and only after you command me to do it—to
show that in politics when I am contradicted, 1 can give way
And they offer me 10 pounds a month 10 stay on the \)Lhw xl(le of m.- lme 1 said to
His Lordship: L ive chanco here n Manitobaand [ vantsometh sked me how
much T wanted, and T sad : *How longdo vou want me to stay awiy 1" « Well, he suid
perhaps a year.” * I tell you sl T want to be here during the elections.” That is
what | asserted: “I want to b« hm:lm 1eumm _\ml it was agreed that they would
give 800 pounds: 400 poun ine and 400 p 0 me ; 300 pounds to me per-
sonnally, 300 pn\uul! for L.q.m.- 100 pounds fo m) fxmlh, 100 pounds for Lepine’s
family, that makes how was it agreed Uiat T should rceivo hac
money ? I said to his Inml»lup “The Canadian Goveraument owe me money, they libel me;
and even on the question of libel, they do it so cll-nrl» at it does not n enu an
come to judgment; they have _ymlglnrn! and vill they make use of i1 T
thing for my reputation that they ubuse every day, besides 1 have done work and ey
have never paid me for it; 1 will ake LS oy i et ot s they will have
to pay me one day”. Tt was agreed in that manner, and the money was given o me in the
chapel of St. Vital in the presence of Mr. Dubuc, «  and when—TI did not know
the little sack of 300 puuudaﬂ[ sold
t0 me there on the table, 1 said to Flis Lordship : « My Lord, if the ane
0 away was here, and if I had to treat, him as he is trying to treat me, b
little sack of gold ought to go to his head.” That was my st proiest at that time, Bu

72, Arch
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hefore he election publio opinion was so excited aguinst the one that had.taken the res-

ponsibi ig my leaving that he called me back, and during the election T was

ment. Tods e Sy oy Tam rovarded for wiat “have done through
187

Rt thres years. Sir G Ca 72, just in that summer, was beaten in
Montreal—1 speak gt of pasty; lqu of him as a Canadian, as
public man—he was beaten by ) 1200 and they came
o m election was sure in Prov against we and they

came to me: “Riel, do you
sure to get it, allow
show that if I had at the time any in
e ower Cunada ha more than p
deration, but. that litlo mark,
little mark of n tion for them.
The pmplu of M witoba ', the governent insugurated ot that time, they had
a sham government, it was (o be erected, to be 1871, after the Ist of
iiaiacy 1671,but we wetl ontin )BT At it Whs ISy AMARER IR as long as Riel was
there, with lis popularity. I the proper institations had been insugurstad Risl would
have ‘come in the House, the Provincial House and of course it was considered o be a
damage. So to keep me back they did not give the people their rights, when it was consti-
tutionnally agreed they should have done. or mysel, but 1 struggled
the rights, for the inauguration of the principles of responsible and constitu-
thonal governmont in Maaitoba. That was considered sbout the time thatb ¥ s Mttt
While [ wag in tho United States was [ very hgpy 1 Yem [ wad veryiliagyy &0MfS
refuge, but T havemet men who have come tomie several times and Here ! Look-out!
ere is # man on the other side of the line and he s trying to lm\c«revenge at you,
e you g0 watar your horws Becmie they had Lt it Sn i Sck Y
name, | could not ¥ horse on the Missouri, witho guarded against
$hose who wanted tay Tife, and it an irony for mo that | should: be entieH Sl
year, when I was invited instead of coming to this coun could with the plan that
‘appeared to me, I could have communicated with the Fenian organization, 1 could
have sent my book, I did not do it, and as a proof of it, while I have no means at all to com-
municate “m. my brother, you will see in Manitoba letters to my brother Joseph, where

as contradi
I me for the little consideration, great
considerit a little mark of consideration, a.

t consider

T speak of my hook, that T could get any amount of money for that book, if I wished it to
be publishe i thought. that there was a_better” chance on this side of the line.
nd wh s it What T said, speaking, if Riel succeeds that he

should_one_day, as a public man, invite t»un;;mlmn from different parts of different
Sountries of th wield; and booaas tho North W
Eaitbrood of this population, and make bargs
Cu\mldmn government in such a way
this land,
hmulmhemh.w of it. When w

givin Canadinn G
ean that we gave ith all the mpm tlu\t 1 have for the English
‘population—to the Anlo-Saxon race. Wodidnot giveit he Anglo Saxon race. There
is the Irish in th» la.ul and the French in the west, nud Lhur proporuoll in the Canadian.
government ought to receive u ressonsble propartion o ch is bought here,
ln(l it is lmrdh the same to give to some French mmlmm in bhe \nr(h West, and none

all to th T don't speak here to call the sympathies, because I am sentenced, T
lpe«k sound sense. T followe the line of nabira) and reasonsble sympathies, bus bekis
my thought, perhaps you would be inclined to believe that it is a \\n,y for me to try to

work aguinat the Eniglsh. No, T donct. T believo that tho English constitution is an
institution which has been perfected for the nations of the world, and while I 5
Saving n faturs, if not durkeg my 1fetise, after 1 of having diifeeeot nationalities i the
North-West here, my hope that they can succeed is that they will have here amor
the great, Anglo-Saxon race, as among the nations of Europe. Two thousand ymn ago,
the Roman people were the leading race and were tenching to the other nations good.
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government, thit s my opinion of the AngloSaxon race. 1 um ot insane encugh to
regret the great glory of the Anglo-Saxon race. God lm givenit to race, and when

G gives something to somelady, i is for & good purpose ,...d it Gad gave groat

gory to Eugmm, it s because he wanted the Angmsn n for his own

ory, §oiee 5 4 20t ndshesl yot.they il continue. The roman empire at the
B8 e dicay, xistod foor hundrel yours v King

e AngloSaxon, the British Empire if it has goue to its highest point of

glory may be called the king, but it is so great it will take ma humlml

years and fully as many as 400 years to lose its prestige and during that T hoy
that his great North- West, with British. influence wil by the imigration of whish

L speak, reach good government; Bt wil T show insanty in hoping that that plan will
hefu]nllod‘llmll LRk cf thowih of my have been, in what is called, asserted
to be wrong to ave been proved 2o bo the leader, 1 hope that, before long. that

same thing i Nl wricy will o knowa s goos and Shen I il 5

tho ender of it and as the lader of what T am doing I say my heart will never sbandon
the idea of having & new island in ¢
rish of the other side of the sen oA e Sl
North West, by the same ways a new Bavaris, in the e way . new Italy i o same
i e ey itoba has been erected i
incroased. since 1870, at least by 9,600,000 neres .‘r land, novw it is 55000,000 sy
there is about 86,000,000, acres of land to which cods tile las ot boen
B etiiel. O soventis gives 12,000,000, of those a a
dians to come and help us there to-day, to-morrow I don’t
nawar foe 1y i to v time that I should make
of the mountain there are Indians, as T have said, and 1 edsand there is a beautiful
fland Vancouvar and 1 think the Belgians will bo imw\ hare. nnd tho Jows who are
looking for a country for 1800 years, the knowledge of which the nations 1 be
B & Wi e, whilo they ave rich and the lois of Pechara will they hear
my voice one day and on the other side of m.mmm wihile the waves of the Pacitic
will chant sweet music for them to console the
perhaps will they say : Heis the one thougisof ue 1 the whola Grea woeld sl 2 llu
us thereon the other side between the great

o Jewa from the States 1 No, what | wish is the natural sourse of immigration that i
what L want. My thougts are for peace. During the 60 days that I have been at Batoche
Ttold you yesterday that they wore threo delegations appointed by the sx.oved to send on
thether sids fo help, l,unlm.»mm not see the safety that I was looking for, not that I
distrust my countrymen ; but such a great revolution will bring inmense disasiers and T
U e e oy lifo to bring dumm except. those which T am bound to bring to
defend my own life and to avoid, to take ountry disasters which threaten
me and my friends and those who have confidence in me. And I don't abandon my an-
cstors ether. Tho acknovledgoment that T bave for my ancestors, 1y ancestors wore
among those who came from Scandinavia and the British Islands 1000 years ago, some of
B i e R oo 1
were ealled Riel, 50 in me there is the Scandinavian and well rooted
The Soandinavians f possibe they

will havea share. 1t is my plan it is one of the ilusions o oy insanity if [ am insan
ey Whonid havo on therother side of the mou arway, & new D

@ new Sweden so that those who spoke of the land 20 ot the North W bo
divided in seven forgot that it was in ten, the French in Manitobe, the Bavariuns the Tta-

Tians the Poles and the Irish in the North-West and then five on the other side too.
 have written those things. Since [ am in jail, those things have passed through the
hands of Captain Dean. There hands of the qu tenan
i 1d

l
Tt do it during my lif | leave. the ides t b fuliied in the futurs and if ¢ is ok
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,,nmblc, you are reasonable men and you know that tlm

)lnnr that
e interest A g e

L if it i not if that peaceful channel of emigration is not open to

North- West, they are i such nunber in the States thet whoe you

perhaps try fo come on_your borders and to look at the lind

whether it is worth paying a visit or not, that is the one.seventh of the lands. that s

about the one-seventh of the lands. So you see that by the very nature of the evidence

which hias Fot v heiw v e the witnesses speak of the onoseventh of the Tands,

me question originates from 1870, from the troubles of Red River, which

ty “h.-n- the one vsoventh o tho Tasd touk 13 existence, and I say that if

has taken place into the North-West, they are trying me

g hish st exiticnon batord e A Court was not in existence when

fliculties of which we speak now in the Saskatchewan began, it is the difficulties

: of '69 and what | say is b that [ have a trial. My wish is this, Your Honors, that

a commission be appointed by the proper authoritesy—but amongst the proper authorities

of course [ count the English authorities, that is the first ployer.uﬂlmnhe. that a com-

mission be appointed, that that commissioy exninines intg this s question or if they are

appointed to try me, if n special tribunal is appointed to try me, that [ am tried R

this question :” Has Riel rebelled in 697

ott, when Thomas Scott was exe

bishop Taché .v.mml to of Sir John, was it

corruption money 1 t 4th When Riel seised with the Council of Red River on’the pro-

perty of the Hudson Bay, Coy, if he did a common pillage? When Riel as expeled

e e justice in 1874, was he a fugitive of justice, as at

that time he had through the member for Hochelaga now in Canada, and through

r. Fiset had communication with the Government, but another time through the
member for Hochelaga, Mr. Alphonse Desjardins

T have asked from the Minister of Justio un interview o he fourth of March, and

that interview was refused to me. In the month of April, T was expelled from the

s wae arvosiad i 1873, 2 1 i otinde b gl  did not want to

s in the woods witing for my election, ir John sent paties to

35,000 if 1 would leave tho coun three ears, and ifthat was not

what I wanted, and that T might take & trip over the water besides and

aver the wold, 'A% the ‘This is et the! fre, time" Skl i

5,000 comes up, and if at thy refused it, was it not reasonable for me that [

5 Am [ insulting? No, T do not insult.

this question

1 rebelled in llm S in 1R85, here is ‘another
q...»mm\ Twarit to have on trial. | wish to'have's’teil thab WoulH IOSeEs space of
ftoc which public opinion is not satisted. | lave, without meaning any
1 Vi o ok offence, when I spoke of one of the articles [
ntioned, some gentlemen T syog) Yo lnwis® vinisE SCHES what /
remarks ! It shows there is so omething not told. 1£ told by law it would mot be sai
I wish to have my trial, as | | or bth, und s T am tried for my career | wish
uld be tried, not the In\ it On the other side I am declared to
of high treason and [ give my elf.m\ prophet of the new world. 1f 1 am guilty
of high treason I say [ am the proph n~h that while a commis-
sion sits on one side, a commission of doctors sk ne fully whether T
am sane, whether | am a prophet or not. ed of, but
wwhether | am a decciver or an impostor. T have said to my lawyers : “llm\ewn(lrnﬂungx
which were said to me last nigh w said that before
the Court opened last mwllt e spirit that guides and assi : The Court will
make an effort.” Your Honor, allow me to speak of
o go on one side. The C¢ nml ‘made an effort, and 1 i
me ¢ vas another thing said to me: A commission will sit’; there will be
not_ hear yet that a commission i to take place. | asked for it.
n in p(x&lor thereby.  The doctors will say, when I speak of these

commission
You will see if [am
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things, whether [ am deceiving. £ they say I am deceiving, I am not an impostor by
will, 1 may be declared insane because T seck an iden which drives me to something right.
1 tell you, in all what T say, in most things I do, I do according to what is told to 1
said have alveady happened. 1t was said to me: “Not

iy I never wanted to send the Half-breeds far. T wanted to
keep them and it was said to me : «T to work before twelve o'clock ” and
when the first battle opened T was taking m  Duck Lake, when the Intéle began
it was a little after twelve o'clock “T mll not begin to work before twelve o'clocl
And what has happened ? And it was said to me: * If you don’t meet the troops onsuch.

B i o et e o e ft ol o hill and the Half-breeds facing it.” It
S iy papers have been shed, if they have been published examine what took
ph\cs und you will see we had to muot general 11414 leton at the foot of the hill. It
s also fold me_that men would sty in the el pruiric and the spiitspoke of those
who would remain on Belle prairie and there were men who remained on the belle
prairie. And_the ,m it was looked upon us something very corect in tho line of
‘military art ; it was not come from me or Dumont ; it was from the spirit ides
me. I have two reasons why I wish the'sentence of the court should not be passed upon.
‘me, the first T wish my trial should take place as T said. Whether that wish is practical
B | v vty o the court hat & commission of d

as Tam declared guilty I would ] e to leave my name as far as cons
a0 right. 1 = commission of dooi d if they examine me, they can set
sincere or not. 1 will give them i Shols history o 1 think while T ‘
of high treason it is only right I should be granted the
whether T am sincere, that | am sincere \u\\ T am judged
guilt is that 1 am an impostor, that would be the consequence.
sit and examine me. There have been witnesses around me for 1
they have declared me insane mnl dw\ will show !
impostor. . If they declare me insa have been as I tr
an impostor, bt according to my conscience.  Your iomed that  whet L e 1

M. Justice Ricnarps

N,
Louis Riel, after a long consideration of your case i
with as great nbxhly as I think any counsel could hav
ry who have shown, [ mi
nicious and greatest that man
sguilty of high treason, you have been proved to have let. loo i pit
and bloodshed, you have, with such assistance as you had in S ‘Saskatchewan country,
masaged to arouse the Indians and ave brought Tuin and miery ¢ families whom
i you bad simply It slone, wer in oo £ them were on_the road to
afffuence. For what you did, the rema iade form 1o excuse whatever, for
what ynn have done the law requires you to answer
t s true that the Jury in mercifal consideration, have asked Her Majest
msideration as she can bestow upon it. I had almost forgotten
s have placed in my hands o notice that the objestion
opening of the court mast o be forgoten from the reconds in
order that, if they see fit, thay may raise the question in the [m)[wl place. That has been
done ; but in spite of that I cannot Tt any hope to you that  you will succeed in
getting entirely free or that Her Majesty will, after what you have been the cause. of
doing, open Her hand of clemency to you. For me I have oly one more duty to perfo
that is to tell you what the senten of the law is upon you. 1 have, as | must, given time
B 10 e to b hourd, ALl T can suggest or adlviss you 1 to, propare to meet
your end, that is all the advice or suggestion I can offer. It is now my f
u and that is that you be taken now fror
B s B which e the el and the placo from whonoo you came, And
that you be kept there till the 15th September nd on the 18th September next
you be taken to the place appointed for your exe and there he hanged by the neck
ﬁuym are dead.  And may God have mercy on your soul !

to
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